IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA Richmond Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

٧.

No. 3:24-cr-91

BOYD FARM, LLC,

Defendant.

PLEA AGREEMENT

Jessica D. Aber, United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Virginia; undersigned counsel for the United States; the defendant, BOYD FARM, LLC, by Frazier T. Boyd III; and the defendant's counsel have entered into an agreement pursuant to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. The terms of this Plea Agreement are as follows:

1. Offense and Maximum Penalties

The defendant agrees to waive indictment and plead guilty to a single count Criminal Information, charging the defendant with Unlawful Discharge of Pollutant, in violation of 33 U.S.C. § 1319(c)(2)(A). The maximum penalties for this offense are: a fine of no less than \$5000 nor more than \$50,000 per day of violation pursuant to 33 U.S.C. 1319(c)(2) or a maximum fine of \$500,000 per count pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3571(c)(3), a five-year term of probation, and a special assessment pursuant to 18 U.S.C § 3013(a)(2)(B).

2. Authorized Corporate Representative

The defendant agrees that this Agreement will be executed by Frazier T. Boyd III, an authorized corporate representative of Boyd Farm, LLC. The defendant further agrees that it has the full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform all of its obligations under this Agreement.

3. Sale, Merger, or Transfer of Company

The defendant agrees that in the event it sells, merges, or transfers all or substantially all of its business operations, whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a stock or asset sale, merger, or transfer, the defendant shall include in any contract for sale, merger or transfer, a provision fully binding the purchaser(s) or any successor(s)-in-interest thereto to the obligations described in this Plea Agreement.

4. Factual Basis for the Plea

The defendant will plead guilty because the defendant is in fact guilty of the charged offense. The defendant admits the facts set forth in the Statement of Facts filed with this Plea Agreement and agrees that those facts establish guilt of the offense charged beyond a reasonable doubt. The Statement of Facts, which is hereby incorporated into this Plea Agreement, constitutes a stipulation of facts for purposes of Section 1B1.2(c) of the Sentencing Guidelines.

5. Assistance and Advice of Counsel

The defendant is satisfied that the defendant's attorney has rendered effective assistance.

The defendant understands that by entering into this Plea Agreement, defendant surrenders certain rights as provided in this agreement. The defendant understands that the rights of criminal defendants include the following:

- a. the right to plead not guilty and to persist in that plea;
- b. the right to a jury trial;
- c. the right to be represented by counsel—and, if necessary, have the court appoint counsel—at trial and at every other stage of the proceedings; and
- d. the right at trial to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, to testify and present evidence, and to compel the attendance of witnesses.

6. Sentencing Guidelines, Recommendations, and Roles

The defendant understands that the Court has jurisdiction and authority to impose any sentence within the statutory maximum described above, but that the Court will determine the defendant's actual sentence in accordance with 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). The defendant understands that the Court has not yet determined a sentence and that any estimate of the advisory sentencing range under the U.S. Sentencing Commission's Sentencing Guidelines Manual the defendant may have received from the defendant's counsel, the United States, or the Probation Office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the United States, the Probation Office, or the Court. Additionally, pursuant to the Supreme Court's decision in *United States v. Booker*, 543 U.S. 220 (2005), the Court, after considering the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a), may impose a sentence above or below the advisory sentencing range, subject only to review by higher courts for reasonableness. The United States makes no promise or representation concerning what sentence the defendant will receive, and the defendant cannot withdraw a guilty plea based upon the actual sentence.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree to recommend at sentencing that the defendant's sentence consist of a fine of \$300,000. The defendant acknowledges that this recommendation is not binding on the Court and that the defendant will not be permitted to withdraw its plea if the Court does not follow this recommendation.

The United States and the defendant agree that the defendant has assisted the government in the investigation and prosecution of the defendant's own misconduct by timely notifying authorities of the defendant's intention to enter a plea of guilty, thereby permitting the government to avoid preparing for trial and permitting the government and the Court to allocate their resources efficiently. If the defendant qualifies for a two-level decrease in offense level